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The meeting house stands atop a hill in the geographical center of the town and is 
located across the road from the town pound, not an uncommon .combination. The 
two-story structure rests on an uncoursed stone foundation and is sheathed in 
feathered clapboards secured by Thought nails. Its gable roof is embellished at 
the eaves by a modillioned cornice terminating in returns on gable ends. Bach 
elevation is five bays across and three include doors. The 16/12 sash windows 
have molded casings and, except for those on the second story of front and rear 
faces, cap-molded heads.

The front (south) elevation faces down the hill toward the village of Sandown. 
Its paired ten-panel doors are in a molded architrave and flanked by fluted 
pilasters supporting a beautifully molded triangular pediment with modillions. The date 
"1773" is painted in the center of the pediment. The west elevation, facing the 
road, has a slightly off-center entry whose double-leaf eight-panel doors are 
crowned by a five-pane rectangular transom light. Its fluted pilasters and triangular 
pediment are like those on the front, except that here the pediment is inscribed 
with the date, II17?U.« The third doorway is on the east elevation. Like that 
on the street facade, it is an off-center, eight-panel, double-leaf door with 
rectangular transom light above. The triangular pediment carried on fluted 
pilasters lacks modillions, however* In the center of the rear face is a round- 
headed window between stories, which lights the pulpit within. Its molded casing 
includes a richly molded head.

Inside the meeting house has equally noteworthy features. The high goblet pulpit 
dominates the interior. It is reached by a steep open-string stair with grace­ 
ful turned balusters and has a panelled sounding board suspended above it. The 
Dulpit, box pews, Deacons' pew, and gallery parapet are all beautifully panelled. 
Woodwork is primarily of a natural finish, although the gallery wainscoting and 
pulpit are grained in imitation of red cedar and columns- and plasters are marbled.

Some slight changes have occurred over the years. Apparently the gallery originally 
contained all family pews and in 1798 it was voted that a pew in the front be 
given over for use by the singers. In i860, however, this was removed to make 
way for the organ and choir loft. Stoves were installed in 1835. The turned 
spindles which once ornamented the gallery balustrade have all disappeared.
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The Congregational Meeting House in Sandown is believed to be the only meeting 
house in New Hampshire which is preserved as it was originally designed. It 
exemplifies the late 18th century meeting house, while, at the same time, it is 
more finely detailed than is usually found. Its graceful pulpit and sounding 
board and the elaborate detailing of the cornice and door surrounds are outstanding. 
The structure's uncompromised state of preservation makes it an invaluable resource 
in the study of 18th century building technology and design. Although the Congre­ 
gational Society dissolved in 183^, town meetings were held in the building until 
1929 when the Old Meeting House Historical Association was formed for its pre­ 
servation.
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